
 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 General Purposes 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Wednesday 25th February, 2015 

   

Time: 
 

 6.00 pm 

   

Venue: 
 

 Rooms 3 & 4 - 17th Floor, City Hall, 64 Victoria Street, 
London, SW1E 6QP 

   

Members:  Councillors: 

  Melvyn Caplan (Chairman) 
David Boothroyd 
Robert Davis 
Tim Mitchell 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception at City Hall from 5.30pm.  If you have 
a disability and require any special assistance please 
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in 
advance of the meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Mick Steward; Head of Committee and Governance 
Services. 
 
Tel: 7641 3134; Email: msteward@westminster.gov.uk 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Head of Legal & Democratic Services in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.  MEMBERSHIP  

 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to note any changes 
to the membership  
 

 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any personal or prejudicial interests in 
matters on this agenda.  
 

 

3.  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 

 To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2014.  
 

 

4.  ESTABLISHMENT OF A PENSION BOARD (Pages 5 - 10) 

 Report of the Director of Corporate Finance and Investment.  
 

 

5.  MEMBERS ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2015/16 (Pages 11 - 36) 

 Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services.  
 

 

6.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN 
CONSIDERS URGENT 

 

 
 
Peter Large  
Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
17 February 2015 
 



 
 

 

 
CITY OF WESTMINSTER 

 
 

MINUTES 

 
 

General Purposes  
 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the General Purposes Committee held on Tuesday 25th 
November, 2014, Room 15 - 17th Floor, Westminster City Hall, 64 Victoria Street, 
London, SW1E 6QP. 
 
Members Present: Councillors Melvyn Caplan (Chairman), David Boothroyd, 
Robert Davis and Tim Mitchell 
 
 
 
1 MEMBERSHIP 
 
1.1 There were no changes to the membership. 
 
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
2.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3 MINUTES 
 
3.1 The chairman, with the consent of the members present, signed the minutes 

of the meeting held on the 5 November 2014 as a true and correct record of 
the proceedings. 

 
4 POLLING DISTRICT AND POLLING PLACE REVIEW 
 
4.1 Martin Pyroyiannos introduced the report which set out the conclusions of 

investigations in respect of outstanding matters relating to the review of 
polling district and polling places that was requested by the committee at its 
meeting on the 5 November 2014. 

 
4.2 Officers were asked to carry out some further investigation in respect of the 

recommendation made in the 5 November Committee Report to change the 
CHA ( Churchill ) polling place from Churchill Gardens Youth Club, Churchill 
Gardens Estate to Churchill Gardens Residents Hall, Churchill Gardens 
Estate on the basis that the Residents Hall is more accessible than the Youth 
Club as it is closer to main roads and bus stops. This was based in part on 
feedback from residents to polling station staff at previous elections. The 
committee was supportive of the change believing that the Residents Hall 
would be easier for voters to find and provide better disabled access than the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
 

existing station. However, members requested that the newly proposed 
station is well advertised to people living on the estate. 

 
4.3 Officers were also asked to investigate whether the polling district boundaries 

within three wards, Maida Vale, Hyde Park, and Knightsbridge and Belgravia, 
could be redrawn to provide better provision for voters and to effect a more 
even distribution of voters across individual polling districts. Mr Pyroyiannos 
provided an update on ward member responses to the revised proposals set 
out in the report which were noted by members. 

 
4. 4 In respect of the polling district boundaries of the Hyde Park ward the 

committee asked that the HPA polling district be amended to include 
Eastbourne and Westbourne Terrace/Mews. In terms of the new polling place 
that will need to be identified for a newly created HPC polling district, 
Councillor Davis suggested that officers should make enquiries about 
potential vacant space with Richard Banks of European Land. Councillor 
Caplan also identified two developments that when completed could also offer 
possibilities. 

 
4.5 With regard to the Knightsbridge & Belgravia ward, the committee was 

unconvinced by the proposed boundary line between the KBA and KBB 
polling districts and requested that officers re-look at this. The use of the 
Royal Geographic Society (RGS) as a polling station for the KBB polling 
district was discussed. The committee raised concern about the previous 
location of the polling station within the site and identifed the most appropriate 
part of the building to use, particularly in terms of easy access from Exhibition 
Road, which it requested should be discussed with Imperial College. 

 
4.6 The committee discussed the polling stations in the Maida Vale ward. 

Members expressed concern at the use of the Paddington Sports Centre as 
the proposed polling place for the MVC polling district due to the long walking 
distance to the polling station from the street. The committee agreed with 
officers that the Spanish and Portuguese Synagogue in Lauderdale Road is 
preferred and they requested that officers continue negotiations with the 
Synagogue about its use. The committee also asked officers to keep in mind 
the possibility of moving the polling place in the MVB polling district back to 
Westminster College on Elgin Avenue following its redevelopment.  

 
4.7 The committee thanked officers for their work to date and requested that the 

outstanding issues are resolved within the next few months which should 
include outstanding boundary district boundaries for the Churchill and 
Lancaster Gate wards. 

 
4.8 RESOLVED: 
 
 1. That the polling place for CHA (Churchill ) place be re-designated from  

Churchill Gardens Youth Club, Churchill Gardens Estate, to Churchill 
Gardens Residents Hall, Churchill Gardens Estate for the reasons set out in 
the 5th and 25th November Committee Reports. 

 

Page 2



 
 

 2. That officers pursue the changes requested in respect of the polling district 
boundaries of the Hyde Park, Maida Vale and Knightsbridge and Belgravia 
wards as set out above.  

 
 3. That the polling district boundaries for Churchill and Lancaster Gate wards 

also be looked into.  

 
 
 
The Meeting ended at 6.06 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN:   DATE  

 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

 

Committee Report 

 

 
Date: 
 

25 February 2015 
 

Classification: 
 

For General Release 
 

Title: 
 

The Establishment of a Pension Board 
 

Report of: 
 

Director of Corporate Finance and Investment 
 

Financial Summary:  
  
Report Author and Contact 
Details: 
 

Jonathan Hunt, 
jonathanhunt@westminster.gov.uk  
Tel: 020 7641 1804 

 
1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 provides that the Secretary of State 

may by regulations establish schemes for the payment of pensions and other 
benefits for various categories of worker including local government workers.  
Such regulations for a scheme (“scheme regulations”) must provide for the 
establishment of a Pension Board to assist the scheme manager (i.e. the 
Council or the committees to which such responsibility has been delegated), to 
monitor and ensure compliance with the regulations and other legislation 
relating to the management of the Pension Fund. 

 
1.2. The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) 

Regulations 2015 are due to come into effect on 20th February 2015 and 
require a Pension Board to be established by1 April 2015. 

 
2. Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the establishment of a Pension Board, and its terms of reference 

attached at Appendix 1 of the report, be approved. 
 
2.2. That the approval of the Pension Board Code of Conduct, Conflicts of Interests 

Policy, Training Policy and the process for selecting non-councillor members 
of the Board be delegated to the Chief Executive following consultation with 
the Chair of the General Purposes Committee and Chair of the Pensions 
Committee. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (the “Act”) together with the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015 
provide that each administering authority must establish a Pension Board by 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

1st April 2015.  The role of the Board is to assist the scheme manager with the 
effective and efficient management and administration of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme. 

 
3.2 The Department for Communities and Local Government have been 

consulting on the implementation of Pension Boards, as required by the Public 
Sector Pensions Act 2013.  This was initially reported to the Pensions 
Committee in September 2014 and November.  The final Regulations were 
laid before Parliament and the final version of the guidance issued on 28th 
January 2015. 

 
3.3 The Act and the regulations provide that the “scheme manager” will be 

responsible for administering, investing and managing the pension fund and 
may delegate these responsibilities to a committee, an officer or an investment 
manager (as appropriate).  In the case of the City of Westminster, it proposed 
that the Pensions Committee will continue to deal with these matters and 
make decisions regarding them.  

 
3.4 The Act states that the scheme regulations will provide for the establishment of 

the pension board which will be responsible for assisting the scheme manager 
(in WCC’s case, the Pensions Committee) in securing compliance with the 
scheme regulations and other legislation relating to the governance and 
administration of the scheme.  The guidance has provided some further 
suggestions about what the Board will do, but leaving it very much up to local 
determination.  It is however clear that, while the Board can make 
recommendations to the Pensions Committee, it will be up to the Committee 
whether to action the recommendations.  The Board will not be a decision 
making body but will contribute to the governance of the pension scheme by 
providing advice and scrutiny. 

 
3.5 The proposed terms of reference, attached as Appendix 1, do not go into great 

detail on the specific areas the Board will focus on as part of its role.  
Suggestions as to areas of work have been published by DCLG and it is 
proposed that Officers review the proposals and discuss with the Board when 
established to determine which areas it wishes to include in its work plan. 

 
3.6 The consultation in the summer on regulations raised the possibility of joint 

pension boards.  The shared service response argued that such an 
arrangement for the three funds would allow for efficiencies and it would be 
advantageous for it to be available as an option.  The Regulations provide that 
where the administration and management of a scheme is wholly or mainly 
shared by two or more administering authorities those administering 
authorities may establish a joint pension board if approval in writing has been 
obtained from the Secretary of State.  This will be explored however in the 
interim three separate Boards are being set up for the tri-borough councils. 

 
3.7 The regulations require pension boards to have an equal number of employer 

representatives and scheme member representatives, the total of which 
cannot be less than four.  One clarification that has arisen from the final 
regulations is that Councillors may now be members of the Pension Board as 

Page 6



 

long as they do not have any direct involvement in the running of the pension 
fund.  The proposed terms of reference in Appendix 1 propose a membership 
of six to ensure that a quorum is easily achieved at each meeting.   

 
3.8 The terms of reference contain a number of provisions concerning training and 

knowledge requirements for the members of the Board, conflicts of interest, 
the management and reporting of meetings. The terms of reference also refer 
to a number of separate policy documents relating to the operation of the 
Board.  These are currently being drafted and it is proposed that approval of 
these documents is delegated to the Chief Executive following consultation 
with the Chair of the General Purposes Committee and Chair of the Pensions 
Committee. 

 
3.9 All costs arising from the operation of the Pension Board will be met by the 

Pension Fund as required by the regulations. 
 
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The establishment of a Pension Board is a legal requirement and the costs of 

supporting and staffing the work related to the Pension Board will be met by 
the pension fund – since the work directly and solely relates to the running of 
the pension fund. 

 
5. Legal Implications 
 
5.1 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and the Local Government Pension 

Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015 require the Council to 
establish a Pension Board by 1 April 2015.  The proposed terms of reference 
comply with the requirements of the legislation and due regard has been paid 
to the guidance.  In order to exercise their functions it may be necessary for 
members of the Pension Board to receive exempt information or reports.  Any 
such information would be provided specifically for that purpose and should 
not be disclosed by the Board to any other party.  This is a matter which will be 
dealt with in the Pension Board Code of Conduct  

 
6. Conclusion 
 
6.1 Given the legal and regulatory requirement, the Committee is asked to 

approve, and that Council then approves the establishment of the Pension 
Board as set out in this paper. 

 

 
If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of 
the background papers, please contact: Jonathan Hunt; 7641 1840 

 
 
 

Page 7



 

Appendix 1:  Proposed Terms of Reference for Pension Board 
 
Terms of Reference – City of Westminster 
 
The purpose of this document is to set out the terms of reference for the local 
Pension Board of the City of Westminster Pension Fund. 
 

1. Role of the Local Pension Board 
The role of the local Pension Board is defined by section 5 of the Public 
Service Pensions Act 2013 and regulation 106 of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) Governance Regulations 2013.  It is to assist the 
administering authority (the Council) with: 

 

• Securing compliance with the LGPS Governance regulations and any other 
legislation relating to the governance and administration of the LGPS 

• Securing compliance with any requirements imposed by the Pensions 
Regulator in relation to the scheme and 

• Ensuring effective and efficient governance and administration of the scheme-
recommendations to the Pensions Committee. 

 
2. 2. Membership 

a. Appointment process 
The Pension Board shall consist of six members and be constituted as 
follows: 

• Three employer representatives comprising one from an admitted or 
scheduled body and two nominated by the Council; and 

• Three scheme member representatives whether from the Council or an 
admitted or scheduled body. 

 
The process for selecting non-Council nominated employer members of the 
Pension Board is set out in a separate document “Selection of Pension Board 
members”. 

 

b. Quorum 
The Pension Board shall be quorate when three Pension Board Members are 
in attendance.  

 
c. Chairman of the Board 
The Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board will be appointed by members 
of the Board as the first business at their first meeting. 

 
d. Substitute members 
Each Scheme Member representative may agree a nominate substitute at the 
first meeting who would act in the Board member’s absence. 

 

Each Employer representative is there on behalf of the employer so may be 
replaced by the nominating body with another individual representing the 
same employer.  

 
 

Page 8



 

e. Periods of office 
Each Board member shall be appointed for a fixed period of two years, which 
can be extended for a further two year period subject to re-nomination. 

 
f. Termination 
Each Board member should endeavour to attend all Board meetings during 
the year and is required to attend at least two meetings each year.  In the 
event of consistent non-attendance by any Board member, then the 
membership of that particular Board member should be reviewed by the other 
Board members with advice from Officers  

 
Other than by ceasing to be eligible as set out above, a Board member may 
only be removed from office during a term of appointment by the unanimous 
agreement of all the other Board members present at the meeting. 

 
A Board member may choose not to continue in their role, and so shall notify 
the Board accordingly following which the process for a replacement shall 
start. 

 

3. Board meetings 
a. Frequency of meetings 
The Board shall as a minimum meet twice a year, and where possible, should 
aim to do so four weeks before the Pensions Committee meets.  Meetings 
shall take place at a time and place agreed by the Pensions Board on an 
annual basis. 

 

b. Voting rights 
Each Board member will be entitled to vote and where a vote is taken the 
matter will be decided by a majority of the Board members present and voting 
but it is expected that the Pension Board will as far as possible reach a 
consensus.  In the event of an equality of votes, the Chairman will have a 
second and or a casting vote. 

 

c. Notice and circulation of papers 
The papers for each Board meeting shall be circulated to all Board members 
one calendar week in advance of each meeting.  The papers shall be 
published on the Council’s website unless they contain material considered to 
be exempt or confidential, as defined by the Local Government Act 1972 and 
subsequently agreed as such by the Board. 

 

d. Minutes 
Minutes of all non-confidential or non-exempt parts of the Board’s meetings 
shall be recorded and published on the Council’s website. 

 
e. Secretariat service 
Council officers will provide the Board with the secretariat services required. 

 
4. Role of Advisers 

a. Access to Council advisers 

Page 9



 

The Board may request that one of the Council’s advisers attends a Board 
meeting to provide advice or information to the Board.  The request should be 
submitted to the Chief Executive. 

 
b. Appointment of advisers specifically for the Board 
If the Board requires advice outside that already provided to the Council, then 
the request should be made to the Pensions Committee and Council officers. 

 
5. Budget and Expenses  

a. Budget 
An annual budget will be agreed by the Board for professional advice, training 
or other purposes if such matters are required and Officers being authorised 
to incur expenditure to implement the programme. 

 
b. Expenses 
Each Board member may claim, upon production of the relevant receipts, 
travel expenses directly incurred in the work of the Pension Board.  

 
6. Additional policies relating to the Board operations 

a. Code of Conduct 
The role of Pension Board members requires the highest standards of 
conduct and therefore, all Board members are required to abide by the 
Pension Board Code of Conduct. 

 
b. Conflict of Interests 
The Board is required to always act within these terms of reference.  Board 
members should abide by the separately prepared Conflicts Policy and keep 
the policy under review. 

 
c. Knowledge and understanding 
All Board members are required to have sufficient knowledge and 
understanding of pensions matters to undertake their roles.  Board members 
are expected to comply with the separate policy on knowledge and 
understanding and maintain appropriate records. 

 
7. Reporting 

a. Annual report on activity 
The Pension Board should prepare an annual report on its activities and its 
compliance with these terms of reference and the associated policies.  This 
report should be addressed to full Council each year, in the first six months of 
the financial year, reporting on the activities of the Pension Board for the 
previous financial year.  Such a report will be submitted to the Pension 
Committee for noting prior to submission to Council. 

 
b. Reporting recommendations  
If the Pension Board determines that it wishes to make recommendations to 
the Pension Committee, such recommendations should be reported to the 
next meeting of the Pension Committee.  The Pension Committee’s response 
to the recommendation will be reported to the next meeting of the Pension 
Board. 

Page 10



 
 

 

General Purposes 

Committee 

 
Date: 
 

25 February 2015 
 

Classification: 
 

For General Release 
 

Title: 
 

Members’ Allowance Scheme 2015/16 
 

Report of: 
 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

Wards Involved: 
 

None 
 

Policy Context: 
 

Management of the Council 
 

Financial Summary:  
 

There are no additional financial impacts 
arising from the proposals set out in this report 
 

Report Author and Contact 
Details: 
 

Mick Steward 
Tel: 020 7641 3134 
Email: msteward@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The Council is required, if it wishes to pay such allowances, to adopt a 

Members’ Allowances Scheme on an annual basis with effect from 1 April 
each year. 

 
1.2 In drawing up the revised Members’ Allowances Scheme regard has been 

given to the recommendations of the London-wide Independent Remuneration 
Panel convened by London Councils whose most recent report (2014) is listed 
with the relevant statutory guidance as background documents.  These are 
available upon request. 

 
1.3 The Members’ Allowances base budget has remained unchanged since 2010.  

During this period no increase for inflation has been made.  Whilst changes to 
some Special Responsibility Allowances are proposed there are no changes to 
the base budget. 

 
2.  Recommendation 
 
2.1  That the Council be recommended to approve the Members’ Allowances  
 Scheme attached as Appendix A for 2015/16 with effect from 1 April 2015. 
         
 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



  

3. Background 
 
3.1 There is a requirement for local authorities if they wish to adopt a Members’ 
 Allowance Scheme on an annual basis, with effect from 1 April each year.  
 Schemes can be amended at any time. 
 
3.2 When considering a new scheme, or amending an existing scheme, local 

authorities must have regard to the report of the London Councils’ 
Independent Panel on the Remuneration of Councillors and relevant guidance 
from the Secretary of State. The Committee and the Council gave 
consideration to both of these when agreeing previous schemes and these 
documents are available as background papers to this report.  The Council’s 
overall budget for Members Allowances remains towards the bottom of all 
London Boroughs.  As a new report from the Independent Panel has just been 
issued this is attached as Appendix B. 

 
 Members’ Allowances 
 
3.3 The current Members’ Allowances Scheme was adopted by the Council on  
 5 March 2014. The Scheme for the 2015/16 municipal year requires the 

approval of the full Council, upon recommendation from the General Purposes 
Committee. As in previous years regard has been given to the findings and 
recommendations detailed in the Panel’s most recent report published in 
2014. 

 
3.4 The Chief Whip of the Majority Party has, as in previous years, been consulted 

on the proposals, which have also been shared with the Chief Whip of the 
Minority Party whose comments are set out in paragraph 6.1 below. 

 
 Basic Allowance 
 
3.5 It is proposed to retain the level of Basic Allowance payable to all Members at 

the same level, i.e £9,000 per annum. 
 
 Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) 
 
3.6 Significant adjustments were made to the scheme in 2010 which intended, 

within the constraints of the existing budget provision, to ensure the scheme 
rewarded more fully the duties and tasks undertaken by Members. The  
changes to the Scheme proposed in this report continue the trend commenced 
previously to visit the SRAs to tasks undertaken in particular day time duties. 

 
3.7      The Scheme continues to reflect and reward the levels of duties undertaken 

by Members in formal posts, including those bodies which have a particularly 
frequent schedule of meetings. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



  

 
 ICT Allowance 
 
3.8 As part of the Members Allowances Scheme approved at the time of the City 

Council elections in 2006, provision for the payment of a one off allowance of 
£1,000 upon election was made to allow for the purchase of ICT equipment. 
This was paid in 2010 and again in 2014.  This is next due in 2018.  The 
interim Chief Information Officer has confirmed that the value of the IT 
allowance continues to be acceptable given that the cost of IT commodity 
computing kit has been stable or reducing over recent years and this is offset 
against increasing demand. 

 
 Travel and Subsistence Allowance 
 

3.9 The Council’s scheme continues to be more restrictive than the Panel’s 
recommendations and only allows for travel claims for approved duties outside 
of the Greater London area (travel to other London Boroughs is not 
reclaimable).  No change to this part of the scheme is proposed.  Reference is 
included in the scheme to the availability of all zone permits for Members, for 
use when undertaking official duties. 

 

4. Legal Implications 
 
4.1 There is a requirement that councils must make any scheme for the following 

year to commence on 1 April.  Schemes can be amended at any time but new 
schemes can be introduced only from the start of each year commencing on 1 
April.  The approval of the full Council is necessary to any amendments to 
existing schemes or the adoption of new schemes. 

 
4.2 Regulations relating to Members’ Allowances require the publication of the 

report of the Independent Remuneration Panel, the scheme of allowances and 
details of the total sums paid to each Member under each category of 
allowance in each year.  The statutory guidance on the publicity requirements 
suggests that details of allowances paid are made available on the Council’s 
website together with information on the responsibilities of elected Members 
and the duties and time commitment which the basic allowance is intended to 
remunerate.  This has previously been agreed by this Committee. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 The Members’ Allowances budget for 2015/16 is £1m (excluding provision for 

the employer National Insurance contributions) and as in recent years no 
inflationary element is proposed for 2015/16. The base budget has remained 
unchanged since 2010 and the changes proposed can be met from the 
existing budget. 

 
6.1 Consultation 
 
 The Chief Whip of the Minority Party has no issues arising from the report. 
 
 

Page 13



  

 

 
If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of 

the background papers, please contact Mick Steward:  
Email: msteward@westminster.gov.uk  

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1972 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows: 
 

 
 

• Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel 2014 

• Guidance Issued by Secretary of State 

• Report of the General Purposes Committee – 26 February 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



  

APPENDIX A 

 
MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 
 
1. This Scheme is made under, and in accordance with, the provisions of the 

Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. 
 
2. The rates of allowances specified will apply until the Scheme is amended or 

replaced, in which event the revised rates of allowances will be paid from the 
date from which the amendment takes effect. 

 
3. Subject to the relevant form being completed at the appropriate time, 

entitlement to allowances under the Scheme commences on the date upon 
which a Member is elected to the Council or is elected or appointed to an 
office qualifying for special responsibility.  The entitlement ceases on the date 
upon which a Member ceases to hold a qualifying office or ceases to be a 
Member of the Council (the fourth day after polling day in the year of City 
Council elections, i.e. the Monday).  An apportionment of the relevant 
allowances will be made in the same proportion as the number of days that 
the Member held Office or was a Member, bears to the number of days in the 
relevant year. 

 
4. Any Member may by notice in writing to the Head of Legal and Democratic 

Services elect to forego for any period any part of an entitlement to an 
allowance under the Scheme which will take effect from the date upon which 
the notice is received by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services. 

 
5. Allowances will be paid by equal monthly instalments on the 20th day of each 

month.  A £1,000 lump sum Basic Allowance for Members to purchase ICT 
equipment will be paid to any Member elected at a by-election.  No ICT 
allowance shall be payable unless the confirmation is received that computer 
hardware and an email address for Council use is available.  This allowance 
will not be paid if a Member received this allowance upon having been elected 
at a by-election in the previous 12 months. 

 
6. Except where so authorised by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

any claim for travel and subsistence allowances must be made within two 
months of the date of the duty to which the claim relates. 

 
Basic Allowance 

 
7. A Basic Allowance of £9,000 pa from 1 April 2015 will be paid to every 

Member of the Council who formally elects to receive it. 
 

Special Responsibility Allowance 
 
8. Payments of Special Responsibility Allowances will be made to Members of 

the Council who hold special offices unless they formally elect not to receive 
them.   Attached as Annex A is a list of the Special Responsibility Allowances 
payable from 1 April 2015. 

Page 15



  

Conferences 
 
9. Councillors are entitled to have their Conference fees met when approved by 

the appropriate Cabinet Member, Committee or the Head of Members 
Services in consultation with the relevant party Chief Whip and to receive 
payments at the approved rates for travel and subsistence in respect of their 
attendance at conferences held outside the City to discuss matters relevant to 
the discharge of the Council’s functions.  

 

 Travel Expenses  

 
10. Members and Co-opted Members are entitled to claim payment of Travel 

Allowances at the rates of allowance set out in Annex B where expenditure 
has necessarily been incurred to enable them to attend an approved duty, 
defined as set out in Annex C, but only when travelling outside the Greater 
London area.  Members of Education Admissions and Exclusions Appeal 
Panels are entitled to claim travel allowances for attendance at meetings 
relating to their membership at the rates set out in Annex B. 

 
 Members of the Council shall be entitled to a City Council all zones official 
 parking permit for use when undertaking official council duties and otherwise 
 used in accordance with the rules relating to their use.  
 
 Subsistence 
 
11. Subsistence may be claimed only for accommodation or meals at conferences 

(approved in accordance with paragraph (i) of Annex C) where such costs are 
not included in the conference fee, subject to the maximum allowance referred 
to in Annex B. 

 
 Payments whilst under Suspension 
 
12. Payments of allowances, basic and special responsibility, shall not be paid to 

a Member who is suspended or if partially suspended that element of special 
responsibility allowance which may be payable in respect of an office held by 
the Member to which the partial suspension relates. 

 
 Pensions 
 
13. No Members of the Council shall be entitled to membership of the Local 

Government Pension Scheme in accordance with Section 7 of the 
Superannuation Act 1972. 
 
Publication 

 
14. This scheme will be published as required by legislation.  At the end of each 

financial year the City Council is required by legislation to publish the sums 
paid to councillors under the Scheme. 

Page 16



  

ANNEX A  
 

MEMBERS ALLOWANCE SCHEME – SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
ALLOWANCES WITH EFFECT FROM 1 APRIL 2015 

 

Office Holders Allowances 
(from 1.4.15) 
Proposed 

Total Cost  
(from 1.4.15) 

 
Leader/Deputy Leader 
 
Leader of the Council (Chairman of the Cabinet) 

 
£ 

 

35,000 

 
£ 

 
35,000 

Deputy Leader of the Council (Vice Chairman of the 
Cabinet) 

17,500 17,500 

Cabinet Members 
 
Each Cabinet Member (excluding the Leader and the 
Deputy Leader) (x8)  
 

 
 

10,000 

 
 

80,000 

Opposition Leader/Whips 
 
Leader of the Opposition 
Chief Whip (Majority) 
Chief Whip (Minority) 
Minority Party Deputy Leader 
 

 
 

8,000 
5,000 
4,000 
4,000 

 

 
 

8,000 
5,000 
4,000 
4,000 

 
Policy and Scrutiny Committees 
Each Scrutiny Committee Chairman (x4) 
Minority Party Scrutiny Spokesperson 
 

 
8,000 
4,000 

 
32,000 
4,000 

Other Committee/Sub-Committee Chairmen 
Audit and Performance 
Standards  
Planning Applications Committees (x4) 
Licensing Sub-Committees (x4) 
Pension Fund Committee 
*Licensing Committee Chairman 
 

 
8,000 
3,000 
4,000 
4,000 
3,000 
8,000 

 
8,000 
3,000 
16,000 
16,000 
3,000 
8,000 

 
 
*   (If this Chairman is also appointed as a Chairman of a Licensing Sub-Committee 
 they will only receive the allowance payable to the Licensing Committee 
 Chairman) 
 
 
 

Page 17



  

Deputy Cabinet Members 
 
Each Deputy Cabinet Member appointed to support a 
Cabinet Member (x16) 
 
Other Panels 
 
Chairman of Rating Advisory Panel 
Chairman of Discretionary Housing Benefits Panel 
 
Panel Members of the Discretionary Housing and 
Benefits Review Panel and the Rating Panel (x8) 
 
Council Members of CityWest Homes Board (x4) 
 
Members of Pension Fund Committee except 
Chairman (x3) 
 

 
 

3,000 
 
 
 
 

3,000 
3,000 
 

2,000 
 
 

2,000 
 

2,000 

 
 

48,000 
 
 
 
 

3,000 
3,000 

      
16,000 

   
 

 8,000 
 

6,000 

Committee Vice-Chairmen 
 
Each Vice-Chairman of the Policy and Scrutiny 
Committees and the Audit and Performance 
Committee (x5) 

 
 

2,000 

 
 

10,000 

 
 
 
 
Panel Members of the Licensing Sub-Committees, Members of the  
Planning Applications Committees rate of £2,000 (x22 - £44,000).  This separate 
SRA is not payable to the Chairmen of these bodies. 
 

* SRA only payable if Chairman is not a Member of the Cabinet. 

 
Panel Member of the Adoption and Fostering Panel  3,000  3,000 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 18



  

NOTE REGARDING SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES PAYABLE IN 
RESPECT OF THE INDEPENDENT PERSON APPOINTED UNDER SECTION 28 
OF THE LOCALISM ACT 2011 AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS ON OTHER 
COMMITTEES 
 
The Independent Person shall be paid a Special Responsibility Allowance of £500 
pa. 
 
The co-opted Members of the Children and Community Services Policy and Scrutiny 
Committee shall be paid upon election and completion of the necessary acceptance 
of office a sum of £300 to cover their out of pocket expenses for the period of their 
office.

Page 19



  

ANNEX B 
 
TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES: (OUTSIDE THE GREATER 
LONDON AREA) 
 
(A) TRAVEL 
 
 
(a) Travel by own private vehicle 

 
 

 
 Motor Mileage Allowance 

 
Pence Per Mile 

 
 Motorcycles:  
 Up to 150cc 8.5  
 151-500cc 12.3  
 Over 500cc 16.5  

 
 

 
 

Cars & Tri cars:  

 
500cc-999cc 35.8  
1000-1199cc 39.9  
Over 1199cc     49.4  

 
 

 
 

(b) Travel by Public Transport 
 

The ordinary fare or any reasonably available cheap fare actually paid. 
 
(c) Travel by Taxi 
 

Members are not permitted to claim for travel by taxi except as part of 
onward or return travel to or from a conference held outside the Greater 
London area where a claim for other travel expenses has or could be made. 

 
 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services shall be authorised to 
reimburse claims for taxi fares, on an exceptional basis, for example on 
medical advice, to and from approved duties.  Such authority to be obtained 
in advance, if possible. 

 
 
(d) Travel by Rail and Air 

 
(i) The ordinary fare or any available cheap fare actually paid. 

 
(ii) Actual expenditure incurred on:  

Reservation of seats 
Sleeping accommodation for an overnight journey 
Deposit on porterage of baggage 
 

(iii) Travel by Air shall only be allowed when included as part of the formal 
approval of the attendance at a conference or overseas visit. In the case 
of overseas visits the cost to be met from the budget of the relevant 
service. 

Page 20



  

(e) Additional Travel Expenses 
 

The rates specified above may be increased by not more than the amount of 
any expenditure incurred on tolls, ferries, parking fees or cost of overnight 
garaging of a motor vehicle, except that reimbursement of the Central 
London Congestion Charge shall not be permitted. 

 
 
(B) SUBSISTENCE 
 

Subsistence claims for the reasonable costs of overnight accommodation or 
meals not included in the Conference fee can only be claimed, up to a 
maximum of £180 per day, upon production of relevant receipts. 

 
 

(C) RECEIPTS 
 

Claims for reimbursement of expenditure by main line rail, air or any other 
additional expenses, or subsistence, must be accompanied by a receipt. 

 
Note:  All Members shall be entitled to apply to the Head of Members’ Services for 
 the use of an all zones parking permit for their use whilst on Official Council 
 business only such permit only to be used in accordance with the guidance 
 notes for use issued with the permits.

Page 21



  

ANNEX C  
 
LIST OF APPROVED DUTIES FOR TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCE: 
 
The following are the categories of duties which qualify for payment of travel and 
subsistence allowance, where such expenditure has been incurred (although 
separate payments will only be reimbursed for travel outside the Greater London 
area): 
 
(a) Meetings of the Council, the Cabinet, their Committees, Sub-Committees, 

Panels and meetings of the Westminster Scrutiny Commission and the Policy 
and Scrutiny Committees and Task Groups of which the Councillor is a 
member or at which a Councillor who is not a member of that body attends to 
address the meeting with the prior permission (where such permission is 
required under Standing Orders) of the Chairman. 

 
(b) Attendance as the Council’s representative at a meeting of any joint authority 

or Committee of local authorities or of any Committee or Sub-Committee of the 
body of which the Council is a constituent member. 

 

(c) Attendance as the Council’s representative at meetings of any association 
of authorities or Committee or Sub-Committee of the association of which 
the Councillor is a member. 

 
(d) Attendance at duties which qualify for attendance allowance as single 

member duties as specified in the Regulations, currently: 
 
 Meetings to determine the attendance of individual pupils at special schools. 
 
 Rota and other visits to inspect establishments on behalf of the Cabinet 

Member for Children and Young People and Adults and Public Health. 
 
(e) Attendance at any other meeting convened by the Council, the Cabinet, a 

Committee or Sub-Committee to discuss matters relevant to the discharge of 
the Council’s functions and to which Members of more than one Party Group 
have been invited. 

 
(f) Attendance at any meeting, which is an induction training session, seminar, 

presentation, or briefing arranged by Chief Officers of the City Council for all 
Members of a Committee, Sub-Committee or Panel to discuss matters 
relevant to the discharge of the Council’s functions and to which Members of 
more than one Party Group have been invited. 

 
(g) Attendance as the Council’s representative in connection with the discharge of 

the Council’s functions at meetings of outside bodies (excluding local authority 
maintained schools), their Committees and Sub-Committees.  The Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services maintains a list of such representatives and 
has delegated powers to add and remove bodies to this category to reflect 
formal appointments made by the City Council. 

Page 22



  

 
(h) Attendance at visits and inspection of sites and premises arranged by officers 

or approved by Cabinet/Committee (eg opening of new facilities). 
 
(i) Attendance approved by the appropriate Committee or by the Head 

Member Services, in accordance with his delegation at conferences 
convened by other authorities and organisations to discuss matters 
relevant to the discharge of the Council’s functions. 

 
(j) Attendance by the Leader of the Council, Cabinet Members, Deputy 

Cabinet Members, Leader of the Opposition, and Chief Whips on matters 
concerning the discharge of the Council’s functions. 

 
(k) Attendance by Cabinet Members, Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of 

Committees and Sub-Committees concerning the discharge of functions 
relevant to the work of their portfolio or their Committees or Sub-
Committees, including Chairman’s Call-over meetings and site visits. 

 
(l) Attendance before Parliamentary Committees, official bodies and inquiries 

to give evidence or make representations on the council’s behalf. 
 

(m) Attendance as the Council’s appointee or nominee at any meeting.  (This 
excludes party group meetings but includes single member duties where 
one member has been appointed, appearing as a Council witness at a 
Planning Inquiry or court proceedings or member-level working groups 
appointed by a Committee and representation on any outside body which 
is not eligible for attendance allowance). 

 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Establishment of a Pension Board
	5 Members Allowances Scheme 2015/16
	Appendix B Remuneration of Councillors in London 2014


